
CONNECTICUT STATE EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT COMMISSION 
And 

THE OFFICE OF THE STATE COMPTROLLER 
JOINT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

 
ACTUARIAL VALUATION AND CONSULTING SERVICES 

STATE EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
JUDGES, FAMILY SUPPORT MAGISTRATES AND COMPENSATION 

COMMISSIONERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
PROBATE JUDGES AND EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM  

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL VENDOR QUESTION RESPONSES 

 
Bidders are reminded that copies of the latest actuarial valuation reports and experience 
study for SERS, JFSMCCRS and PJERS may be obtained from the OSC website located at 
http://www.osc.state.ct.us/rbsd/reports/index.html. 

 
1. Please provide a copy of the most recent experience study. 

 
 Response:  The most recent experience study is located on the OSC website at: 
 http://www.osc.state.ct.us/rbsd/reports/index.html 
 

2. What date is the participant data normally provided for the valuations of 
SERS, JFSMCCRS and PJERS?   

 
 To accommodate the November results deadline to the Commission for the  
 June 30th valuations (SERS and JFSMCCRS) and the June results deadline  
 to the Commission for the December 31st valuation (PJERS), when can the  
 actuary expect receipt of employee and retiree data?  Is employee and retiree  
 data submitted in the same format for each system? 

 
 Response:  The SERS and JFSMCCRS data is provided in August and the PJERS 
 data is provided in April. 
 

3. The Milliman SERS report states that as of 6/30/1998, Milliman has 
prepared a full valuation every other year for SERS and JFSMCCRS.  What 
report or update, if any, is completed in the off-cycle years?  What has 
prompted the Commission to consider full valuations every year?  It appears 
that a full PJERS’ valuation is performed every year.  Will this practice 
continue for PJERS? 

 
 Response:  For SERS and JFSMCCRS, the Retirement Commission is statutorily 
 mandated to certify the amounts actuarially determined as necessary to fund the 
 systems to the General Assembly on a biennial basis; in the off-cycle years an 
 abbreviated valuation was produced and used for projected planning purposes 
 only. 

http://www.osc.state.ct.us/rbsd/reports/index.html


 
 For PJERS, the Retirement Commission is statutorily mandated to certify to the 
 State Treasurer on an annual basis the amount actuarially determined as necessary 
 to fund the system. 
 

4. The RFP calls for a total of 12 meetings per year.   Does more than one 
meeting occur on the same day? Can you provide how these were distributed 
throughout last year?    

 
 Response:  There is usually no more than one meeting per day. Meetings can be 
 “face to face” in cases where initial drafts are discussed or via telephonic 
 conference calls if the meeting and/or information requested is more of a quick 
 “follow up” nature.  Generally, there are only one to two meetings per system per 
 year; however, years in which an experience study is conducted will have more 
 meetings than years that do not.  
 

5. Please provide the fixed fees for the valuation services for the last two fiscal 
years. (Also include any additional fixed retainer fee.) 

 
 Please provide the fees (including hourly rates) and a description of the 
 special services performed during the last two fiscal years.    

 
 What are the current fees for the regular actuarial valuation services? What 
 hourly rates are in the current contract? 

 
 What fees have been paid over the last three years, allocated between base 
 retainer fees and special projects? 

 
 What are the current fees paid to Milliman, broken down by fixed fees for 
 actuarial valuations, experience study, etc.? 

 
 Please provide a copy of the current contract. 

 
 Response:  A copy of the current contract appears in Attachment "A" to this 
 memorandum.  The fee information requested can be found within that document. 
 An example of the type of special services that might be requested is to determine 
 the actuarial cost to one of the systems if a specific piece of legislation concerning 
 that system’s benefits, credited service, actual service, etc. was enacted. 
 

6. Please confirm which forms included with the RFP need to be completed and 
included with our proposal? (e.g., Gift and Campaign Contribution 
Certification,  Consulting Agreement Affidavit, Certification (by corporate 
or other business entity regarding support of nondiscrimination..), SEEC 
Form 10, etc.) 
 



 Which of the following forms should be completed and included as part of 
 the proposal submission? 
 

a) Workforce Analysis Affirmative Action – State Contractors 
b) Gift and Campaign Contribution Certification 
c) Consulting Agreement Affidavit (The directions indicate that only a 

portion of this form needs to be completed if the bidder has not 
entered into a consulting agreement.  Please clarify what information 
should be provided.) 

d) Nondiscrimination Certification 
e) SEEC Form 10 
f) SEEC Form 11 
g) Bidder Contract Compliance Monitoring Report 
h) Acknowledgment of Contract Compliance Notification to Bidders 
i) OSC Standard Contract and Conditions. 

 
Response:  We believe that the RFP clearly states what forms need to be 
completed and included with your proposal.  A good rule of thumb is that if the 
form is attached to or made part of the RFP it should be submitted as part of your 
proposal.  It is suggested that you carefully review the RFP once again if you 
require clarification in this area. 

 
7. Would the Commission and Office of Comptroller be willing to   
 negotiate certain terms and conditions contained in the RFP   
 with the winning bidder, such as a commercially standard   
 limitation on the contractor’s liability? 

 
 Response: The Office of the Attorney General has advised the OSC and other 
 state agencies that a state contract may not contain certain provisions including 
 but not limited to limited liability provisions.  Notwithstanding the above, the 
 Commission and Office of the State Comptroller are always willing to negotiate 
 certain terms and conditions with the winning bidder to the extent allowable by 
 state statutes and regulations. 
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